Q

° MISSION VISTA ACADEMY

nengE 43517 Ridge Park Drive #100, Temecula, California 92590
MISSION VISTA  Phone (951) 395-8940 * Fax (951) 395-8941
—— ACADEMY ——
Regular Board Meeting

Mission Vista Academy
August 22,2019 — 5:30 pm — 6:30 pm
43517 Ridge Park Drive, #100
Temecula, CA 92590

AGENDA

1. Call to Order

Public Comments

Principal’s Report

Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Meeting Calendar

Discussion and Potential Action on Changing the Board Size to 5 People

A O i

Discussion and Potential Action on the Process for Nominating and Appointing Board

Members

7. Discussion and Potential Action on Approving of the Lending and Borrowing Policy

8. Discussion and Potential Action on Approving the Master Credit Agreement

9. Discussion and Potential Action on Approving the Board Resolution to Approve and
Accept a Revenue Anticipation Loan

10. Discussion and Potential Action on the Revised 2019-2020 Budget

11. Discussion and Potential Action on Approving the Charter School Application for
CalSTRS Activation

12. Discussion and Potential Action on The Board Resolution to Update Check Signers on
City National Bank Accounts

13. Adjournment

Public comment rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items. Please fill out a yellow
card available at the entrance. Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area. We ask
that comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible
may be heard. By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

Note: Mission Vista Academy Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting
process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the
public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 818-207-3837 at least 48 hours before the scheduled board
meetfplggsg gharyo may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. (Government Code § 54954.2; Americans with

Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 12132)).



Mission Vista Academy
2019-2020 Board Meeting Calendar

Su M Tu W Th F Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th
T 373 [112]314[5 el T 27345
4156|780l 8][40l 1s/1s] [6]7 &8 0]
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20[21] 13 14 15 17 18 19
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22@24 25 26

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa M Tu W Th Su M Tu W Th
TT3] ({1231 4[5[c[7 T 234
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 1719 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
17 18 1921 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21@23 24 25

24 25 26 27 28 20 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 31
February 2020 | March2020 | April 2020
Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 1.2 /3 4 567 1,23 4
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
16 17 1820 21 22 22 23 24@26 27 28 19 20 21@23 24 25

23124 25 26 27 28 29 29 | 30 | 31 26 | 27 | 28 29 30
May 2020 June 2020 July 2020
Su M Tu W Th F Sa Su M Tu W Th Su M Tu W Th
1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4
3 4 5 6 7|8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9|10 M

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 1618 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
17 18 1921 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

24 25 26 27 28 | 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31
31

D Board Meetings

Sep 21 Board Training 9:00 am - 4:00 pm Jan 22 Board Meeting 5:00 pm
Oct 23 Board Meeting 5:00 pm Feb 19 Board Meeting 5:00 pm
Nov 20 Board Meeting 5:00 pm Mar 25 Board Meeting 5:00 pm
Dec 18 Board Meeting 5:00 pm April 22 Board Meeting 5:00 pm
May 20 Board Meeting 5:00 pm
Jun 17 Board Meeting 5:00 pm

Page 2 of 42



INTERSCHOOL LENDING AND BORROWING POLICY

The Board of Directors of Blue Ridge Academy (the “School”) hereby adopts the following policy
on borrowing and lending between the School and related public charter schools which operate
based upon the “Inspire Education Model” described herein.

A. Purpose

The School may sometimes experience cash shortages as a result of lags in state funding due to
rapid growth, delays and deferrals, government revenue reductions, and less than projected
average daily attendance, among other reasons. This Interschool Lending and Borrowing Policy
authorizes the School to temporarily lend and borrow funds within the School’s charter school
network to ensure uninterrupted educational services and to safeguard against funding
shortfalls.

B. Definitions
“Authorized Officer” shall mean the Chief Executive Officer of School or his or her designee.
“Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the School.

“District Office” shall mean Provenance, a nonprofit public benefit corporation doing business
as Inspire District Office, which contracts to provide specific goods and task-based services to
School.

“Inspire Education Model” or “Inspire model school” means a public charter operating an
independent study program based upon the principles of academic flexibility and use of
intellectual property licensed by Provenance, developed out of years of experience of Inspire
Charter Schools.

“Related School” shall mean the following public charter schools whose operations are based
upon the Inspire Education Model: Alder Grove Academy, Clarksville Charter School, Granite
Mountain Charter School, Heartland Charter School, Inspire Charter School — Central, Inspire
Charter School — Los Angeles, Inspire Charter School — North, Inspire Charter School — Kern,
Inspire Charter School — South, Lake View Charter School, Lewis and Clark Charter School,
Mission Vista Academy, Monarch River Academy, Pacific Coast Academy, Sequoia Canyon
Charter School, The Cottonwood School, Triumph Academy, West Coast Academy, Winship
Community School, and such other schools as may be Inspire-model schools of which Inspire
Charter Schools was or is a statutory member.

C. Interschool Lending & Borrowing

The School may engage in short-term receivable (borrowing) and payable (lending) funding with
Related Schools and the District Office under the following terms and conditions.

1. Lending

Page 3 of 42



If a Related School is experiencing a funding shortfall, and the Authorized Officer determines
that the School has sufficient surplus funds, the School may temporarily loan funds to a Related
School to cover reasonable and necessary expenses and liabilities arising from Related School’s
operation of a public charter school based upon the Inspire Education Model. The School has
sufficient surplus funds if it has adequate current and projected reserves that will support the
School’s budgeted spending, and if the loan will not adversely affect the School’s status as a
going concern or exceed the fiscal year duration.

The School shall make no loans to the District Office. This prohibition shall not prevent the
District Office from loaning money to the School or temporarily transferring School funds to
Related Schools, so long as these services are performed at the direction of the Authorized
Officer under the Board’s ultimate decision-making authority. This prohibition does not extend
to fees paid by the School to the District Office for goods and services provided.

2. Borrowing

If the School is experiencing a projected funding shortfall, and a Related School or the District
Office has sufficient surplus funds, the School may accept a temporary loan from the Related
School or from the District Office to cover reasonable and necessary expenses and liabilities
arising from the School’s operation of a public charter school based upon the Inspire Education
Model.

3. Procedure

Requests to loan or borrow funds under the Policy shall be documented in writing by and
through the Authorized Officer, according to such procedures as the Authorized Officer may
determine are necessary and appropriate, subject to the approval limits imposed herein. The
District Office may act as a conduit for the purposes of facilitating the transfer of funds
between the School and Related Schools under this policy.

At the Authorized Officer’s discretion, approved funding under this policy may be via wire
transfer, check, or other approved method.

4. Repayment/Reconciliation

At the end of each fiscal year, the School shall reconcile funds loaned and borrowed under this
policy. Funds loaned and borrowed under this policy that are settled or result in a zero balance
as of the end of the fiscal year, are not subject to any repayment terms or interest accruals.
Any funds loaned or borrowed under this policy that are not fully repaid as of the close of the
fiscal year, may result in and be converted to a loan agreement or other appropriate written
instrument in order to formally document the amount owed between the intracompany
accounts and the repayment terms.

D. Authority

DOCS 3668756.2
Page 4 of 42



The Board hereby delegates to the Authorized Officer authority to approve loans and borrow
funds under this policy in an amount of $50,000 or less, per transaction and cumulatively, and
to take any other actions that are reasonable and necessary to fulfill the purposes of this policy.
Any lending or borrowing by the School in an amount greater than $50,000, per transaction or
cumulatively, shall be brought to the Board for approval. The School shall not make any loan to
a Related School that will negatively impact the School’s own budgeted spending (taking into
account current and projected enrollment revenue), affect its status as a going concern, or
exceed one (1) year in duration. The School shall not borrow funds from a Related School
under repayment terms that will exceed one (1) year in duration. In the event repayment of
monies loaned or borrowed will exceed one (1) year, such transaction must be renewed by the
Authorized Officer or Board, as applicable.

E. Accounting

The identity, origin and source of funds loaned or borrowed under this policy shall remain
known and identifiable and the transactions themselves shall be open, auditable and
accountable. Funds loaned under this policy to more than one Inspire school shall not be
blended or commingled.

The Authorized Officer will cause to be maintained a ledger of all transactions under this policy,
which includes amounts, dates and sources of all funds loaned to and borrowed by the School
under this policy. The Authorized Officer shall provide the Board with an up-to-date copy of the
general ledger at regular Board meetings and upon request.

F. Supremacy

This policy shall replace any pre-existing School policies and procedures concerning the subject
matter herein and shall supersede any contrary provision in any existing School policies or
procedures.

Approved: , 2019

DOCS 3668756.2
Page 5 of 42



MASTER CREDIT AGREEMENT

This Master Credit Agreement (“Master Agreement”), dated as of July 1, 2019, is
made by and among Inspire Charter School — Los Angeles, Inspire Charter School — South, Inspire
Charter School — North, Winship Community School, Inspire Charter School — Central, Clarksville
Charter School, Pacific Coast Academy, Inspire Education Foundation, Inspire University and
Heartland Charter School (each, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and a
“Participant,” and collectively, the “Participants”) and Provenance, a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation (“Provenance”) doing business as Inspire District Office (the “District
Office”), and acting as the initial administrator hereunder (the “Administrator”) and as a
Participant.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each Participant is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
that has been determined to be an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code, as amended (the “Code”) whose charitable purposes include the provision or
support of free education through the operation of public charter schools based upon the Inspire
Education Model (as herein defined) pursuant to a charter authorized under the Charter Schools
Act, California Education Code section 47600 et seq. (the “Act”);

WHEREAS, each Participant was formerly a component of a single entity, Inspire
Charter Schools, Inc., until its reorganization in 2017 and 2018, during which time the charter
schools among the Participants were separately incorporated and Provenance was established;

WHEREAS, from time to time, any Participant may experience cash shortages as
a result of lags in State funding due to rapid growth, delays and deferrals, government revenue
reductions, and less than projected daily attendance, among other reasons;

WHEREAS, from time to time, the Governing Body of any Participant may
determine that it holds Eligible Funds (as herein defined) that it is willing to lend to any other
Participant (excluding the Administrator as a Participant) under the terms of this Master
Agreement;

WHEREAS, in accordance with the foregoing, each Participant is authorized by
law, and deems it necessary and desirable that it be able, to extend or incur temporary loans as
provided in this Master Agreement to ensure uninterrupted school operations and to safeguard
against funding shortfalls of the Participant or of another Participant;

WHEREAS, prior to the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined), each Participant
has heretofore made or incurred one or more temporary loans not heretofore repaid in full (each,
cumulatively an “Outstanding Loan Balance”) for such support and for other lawful and proper
corporate purposes;

WHEREAS, cach Participant has entered into a separate Education and Support
Services Agreement (“Services Agreement”) with Provenance, whereby the District Office agrees
to deliver goods to and performs task-related services for the Participant, at the direction of the

Page 6 of 42



Participant’s Governing Body and for which the Governing Body of the Participant retains ultimate
decision-making authority, in exchange for an annual fee payable by the Participant;

WHEREAS, each Participant desires to ratify and provide for the payment of its
respective Outstanding Loan Balance and to establish the terms and policies under which, from or
after the date of this Master Agreement, it can temporarily lend to or borrow funds from another
Participant through the origination of revenue anticipation loans (“Revenue Anticipation Loans”)
to support the performance of its respective obligations under its respective Services Agreement
and to stabilize and maintain the California public charter school operations of the Participant or
of any other Participant, notwithstanding temporary fluctuations in the receipt of public funds
under the Act;

WHEREAS, each Participant understands and acknowledges that this Master
Agreement serves and furthers its respective charitable purposes and Services Agreement;

WHEREAS, in order to further document their respective rights and obligations
with regard to the Outstanding Loan Balances, and to establish the terms and conditions for the
origination and repayment of Revenue Anticipation Loans, the Participants desire to enter into this
Master Agreement upon the terms and conditions set forth herein;.

WHEREAS, all acts and things necessary to constitute these presents a valid
agreement according to its terms have been done and performed, and the execution of this Master
Agreement has in all respects been duly authorized, and each Participant, in the exercise of the
legal right and power vested in it, executes this Master Agreement to provide for the payment of
its respective Outstanding Loan Balance and the origination and repayment of Revenue
Anticipation Loans in accordance with the terms of this Master Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to ratify the terms and conditions of the
Outstanding Loan Balances and to declare the terms and conditions upon which Revenue
Anticipation Loans will be originated and repaid, and in consideration of the covenants and
conditions hereinafter contained, and for other good and valuable consideration the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Participants and the Administrator agree as
follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS, CONTENT OF CERTIFICATES AND OPINIONS; INTERPRETATION

Section 1.01 Definitions. In addition to the words and terms elsewhere defined
in this Master Agreement, the following words and terms as used in this Master Agreement shall
have the following meanings unless the context or use indicates another or different meaning or
intent:

“Act” means the Charter Schools Act of 1992, constituting Part 26.8 of Division 4
of Title 2 of the Education Code of the State, as in effect on the date hereof and as it may from
time to time hereafter be amended or supplemented.

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 7 of 42



“Administrator” means the District Office or any successor hereafter designated as
Administrator pursuant to the provisions hereof.

“Authorized Officer”’ means, as to a Participant, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Participant or his or her designee.

“Board Resolution” means a resolution certified by the Secretary or equivalent
officer of a Participant to have been duly adopted by the Governing Body of such Participant and
to be in full force and effect on the date of such certification.

“Business Day” means any day which is not any of the following: (a) a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday as set forth by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco; (b) any other
day on which banks in New York, New York are authorized or required to be closed by the
appropriate regulatory authorities; or (c) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange is
authorized or required to be closed.

“Certificate” of a Participant means, respectively, a written certificate, statement,
order, request or requisition signed in the name of the Participant by any Authorized Officer. Any
such instrument and supporting opinions or representations, if any, may, but need not, be combined
in a single instrument with any other instrument, opinion or representation, and the two or more
so combined shall be read and construed as a single instrument. If and to the extent required by
the provisions of Section 1.02, each such instrument shall include the statements required under
Section 1.02.

“Charter,” as to any Participant Borrower, means each duly authorized charter
pursuant to which the Participant Borrower operates a Charter School, together with any renewals
or extensions thereof, as applicable.

“Charter School” means, as to any Participant, means the charter school then
operated by the Participant as a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed to operate under,
the Inspire Education Model and as provided in the applicable laws and regulations, under the
Participant’s Charter and in furtherance of the Participant’s specific charitable purposes.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
Each reference to a section of the Code herein shall be deemed to include the United States
Treasury Regulations, including temporary and proposed regulations, relating to such section
which are applicable to any Participant.

“District Office” means Provenance, a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation doing business as Inspire District Office, which contracts to provide services to a
Participant.

“Effective Date” means July 1, 2019, which is the date of the original execution
and delivery of this Master Agreement.

“Electronic Means” means telecopy, facsimile transmission, e-mail transmission
or other similar electronic means of communication providing evidence of transmission.

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 8 of 42



“Eligible Funds” means the funds of a Participant that have been determined by
the adoption such Participant’s Board Resolution by its Governing Board to be surplus because it
is not needed for the Participant’s current budgeted expenses or for maintaining operating reserves
the Governing Board deems prudent to assure proper and continuous operation of such
Participant’s Charter School.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning July 1 of each year and ending the next
succeeding June 30 or any other 12-month period selected and designated as the official fiscal year
period of the Corporation.

“GAAP” means, as to any Participant, generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States of America applicable to the Participant, as in effect from time to time.

“Governing Body” means (a) the board of directors, board of trustees or similar
group in which the right to exercise the power of corporate directors or trustees is vested or (b) any
duly authorized committee of such board to which the relevant powers of such board have been
lawfully delegated.

“Inspire Education Model’ means the model educational services, programs and
content licensed to a Charter School by Provenance under trademark.

“Master Agreement” means this Master Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1,
2019, among the Participants and the Administrator.

“Outstanding Loan Balances” means the total amounts of intercompany loans,
advances and payables made or incurred by the Participants prior to the Effective Date and not yet
fully repaid, such amounts being subject to adjustment in the course of closing and reconciling
each Participant’s financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019.

“Participant” means, initially, Inspire Charter School — Los Angeles, Inspire
Charter School — South, Inspire Charter School — North, Winship Community School, Inspire
Charter School — Central, Clarksville Charter School, Pacific Coast Academy, Inspire Education
Foundation, Inspire University and Heartland Charter School (each, a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation) and the Administrator, as and when acting as a Participant, and subsequently,
any other Participant that is listed on Exhibit B hereto after admission as a Participant pursuant to
Section 6.02; provided, however, that any Participant that shall have withdrawn as a Participant as
permitted by Section 6.03 shall no longer be a “Participant” for purposes hereof.

“Participant Borrower” means a Participant acting in the capacity of a borrower as
to any Outstanding Loan Balance or any Revenue Anticipation Loan.

“Participant Lender” means a Participant acting in the capacity of a lender as to
any Outstanding Loan Balance or any Revenue Anticipation Loan.

“Person” or words importing persons means an individual, corporation, firm,
association, partnership, trust or other legal entity or group of entities.

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 9 of 42



“Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balances” means the amounts of Outstanding
Loan Balances estimated as of the Effective Date as subject to adjustment in the course of closing
and reconciling each Participant’s financial statements for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019.

“Revenue Anticipation Loan” means any and all Revenue Anticipation Loans that
may be originated in accordance with the terms of this Master Agreement.

“Services Agreement’ means for any Participant, the Education and Support
Services Agreement with Provenance, whereby the District Office agrees to deliver goods to and
performs task-related services for the Participant, at the direction of the Participant’s Governing
Body and for which the Governing Body of the Participant retains ultimate decision-making
authority, in exchange for an annual fee payable by the Participant.

“State” means the State of California.

Section 1.02 Content of Certificates and Opinions. Every certificate or opinion
provided for in this Master Agreement with respect to compliance with any provision hereof shall
include all of the following: (a) a statement that the Person making or giving such certificate or
opinion has read such provision and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a brief statement as
to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the certificate or opinion
is based; (c) a statement that, in the opinion of such Person, he has made or caused to be made
such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him to express an informed opinion
with respect to the subject matter referred to in the instrument to which his signature is affixed;
(d) a statement of the assumptions upon which such certificate or opinion is based, and that such
assumptions in the opinion of such Person are reasonable; and (e) a statement as to whether or not,
in the opinion of such Person, such provision has been satisfied.

Any such certificate or opinion made or given by an Authorized Officer may be
based, insofar as it relates to legal, accounting or educational matters, upon a certificate or opinion
of or representation by counsel, an accountant or a consultant, unless such officer knows, or in the
exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the certificate, opinion or representation with
respect to the matters upon which such certificate or statement may be based, as aforesaid, is
erroneous. Any such certificate or opinion made or given by counsel, an accountant or a consultant
may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters (with respect to which information is in the
possession of the applicable Participant upon a Certificate or opinion of or representation by any
Authorized Officer, unless such counsel, accountant or consultant knows, or in the exercise of
reasonable care should have known, that the Certificate or opinion or representation with respect
to the matters upon which such Person’s Certificate or opinion or representation may be based, as
aforesaid, is erroneous. Neither the same Authorized Officer or the same counsel, accountant or
consultant, as the case may be, need certify to all of the matters required to be certified under any
provision of this Master Agreement or any related instrument, but any different Authorized
Officer, counsel, accountant or consultant may certify to different matters, respectively.

Section 1.03 Interpretation.
(a) Unless the context otherwise indicates, words expressed in the singular shall

include the plural and vice versa and the use of the neuter, masculine or feminine gender is for

-5-
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 10 of 42



convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and include the neuter, masculine or feminine
gender, as appropriate.

(b) Headings of articles and sections herein and the table of contents hereof are
solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning,
construction or effect of any provision of this Master Agreement.

(©) Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references herein to “Articles,”
“Sections” “paragraphs”, “subparagraphs,” “clauses” and other subdivisions are to the
corresponding Articles, Sections, paragraphs, subparagraphs, clauses or other subdivisions of this
Master Agreement; the words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereby,” “hereunder” and other words of
similar import refer to this Master Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section,
paragraph, subparagraph, clause or other subdivision of this Master Agreement.

2 (13

ARTICLE 11
OUTSTANDING LOAN BALANCES

Section 2.01 Ratification of Outstanding Loan Balances. As authorized
pursuant to its Board Resolution, each Participant and the Administrator listed as a party to a
Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balance on Exhibit A hereto hereby ratifies and confirms such
Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balance, whether (a) such Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balance
was originated or incurred by such Participant in its current corporate capacity or (b) subsequently
assigned to or assumed by such Participant upon or after its incorporation; provided, however, that
each Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balance may be subject to adjustment as set forth in the
definition of such term in Section 1.01.

Section 2.02 Repayment of Outstanding Loan Balances. Each Participant
Borrower and corresponding Participant Lender with respect to all Outstanding Loan Balances to
which it is a party hereby agrees that, at the end of its Fiscal Year, it must reconcile funds loaned
and borrowed under this Master Agreement. Funds loaned and borrowed under this Master
Agreement that are settled or result in a zero balance as of the end of the Fiscal Year are not subject
to any repayment terms or interest accruals. Any Outstanding Loan Balance that is not fully repaid
as of the end of the Fiscal Year shall be converted to a Revenue Anticipation Loan under Article II1
of this Master Agreement in order to provide repayment terms for such Outstanding Loan Balance.

ARTICLE III
REVENUE ANTICIPATION LOANS

Section 3.01 Origination. From time to time, pursuant to a Board Resolution of
its Governing Body, any Participant may elect, in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Article III, to act as a Participant Borrower or a Participant Lender with regard to a Revenue
Anticipation Loan made or incurred hereunder. Each Participant Loan shall be made or incurred
pursuant to Board Resolutions duly adopted by the Governing Body of each Participant Borrower
and Participant Lender; provided, however, that any Governing Body may delegate to an
Authorized Officer the authority to approve the making or incurring of Revenue Anticipation

-6-
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 11 of 42



Loans only to the extent that the aggregate principal amount of outstanding Revenue Anticipation
Loans to which the Participant is a party does not exceed $50,000. A Participant Lender shall fund
no Revenue Anticipation Loan with funds that have not been duly determined by the Participant
Lender’s Governing Body to be Eligible Funds.

Section 3.02 Accounting and Documentation. Each Participant shall ensure
that the identity, origin and source of funds loaned or borrowed under this Master Agreement shall
remain known, identifiable, open, auditable and accountable. For each Revenue Anticipation
Loan, the Authorized Officer of the applicable Participant Borrower shall cause to be completed,
executed and delivered to the corresponding Participant Lender a promissory note substantially in
the form attached to this Master Agreement as Exhibit C, and each such Authorized Officer shall
cause to be maintained a ledger of all amounts loaned or borrowed, the date of each borrowing and
the source of funds for each borrowing, up-to-date copies of which shall be provided to the
Governing Body of such Participant at regular meetings and upon request.

Section 3.03 The Administrator. As Administrator and not as a Participant, the
Administrator shall assist each Participant Lender and Participant Borrower with processing of
and funds transfer and recordkeeping for each Revenue Anticipation Loan authorized pursuant to
a duly adopted Board Resolution of the Governing Body of each Participant therein, including
without limitation, the maintenance of the applicable ledger as provided in Section 3.02. For all
purposes of this Master Agreement, the Administrator shall be prohibited from acting as a
Participant Borrower with respect to any Revenue Anticipation Loan that does not arise from the
conversion of an Outstanding Loan Balance to the Administrator as provided in Section 2.02. The
Administrator may act as a Participant Lender with respect to a Revenue Anticipation Loan subject
to the terms of this Master Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator shall
have no discretion or decision-making authority regarding the origination or repayment of any
Revenue Anticipation Loan except for Revenue Anticipation Loans for which the Administrator
is acting in the capacity of Participant Lender.

Section 3.04 Application of Proceeds. By accepting the proceeds of a Revenue
Anticipation Loan, the Participant Borrower shall be deemed to have agreed that its expenditure
of such proceeds shall be solely for the Participant Borrower’s operation of its Charter School as
a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed to operate under, the Inspire Education Model
and as provided in the applicable laws and regulations, in the Participant Borrower’s charter and
in furtherance of the Participant Borrower’s specific charitable purposes. Without limitation of
the foregoing, no Participant Borrower shall use any proceeds of a Revenue Anticipation Loan,
directly or indirectly, to prepay to the Administrator all or any portion of its obligations under any
Services Agreement except to the extent of making ordinary and necessary payments thereunder
for the current Fiscal Year, it being the intent of the Participant Borrower that no such prepayment
shall be made, in whole or in part, to provide funds to the Administrator in lieu of the proceeds of
a Revenue Anticipation Loan prohibited under Section 3.03.

Section 3.05 Repayment. Each Participant Borrower shall repay its Revenue
Anticipation Loan with Eligible Funds no later than the end of the Fiscal Year in which said
Revenue Anticipation Loan is made hereunder.

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 12 of 42



Section 3.06 Late Charges. By its acceptance of a Revenue Anticipation Loan,
each Participant Borrower acknowledges that any late payment by the Participant Borrower to or
for the account of the corresponding Participant Lender or other sums due under or by virtue of
this Master Agreement will cause the Participant Lender to incur costs not contemplated by this
Master Agreement, the exact amount of which is difficult to ascertain. Accordingly, if any
payment on the Revenue Anticipation Loan due from the Lessee shall not be received in full by
the Participant Lender (or the Administrator acting on behalf of the Participant Lender) on the date
such amount is due, then the Participant Borrower shall pay to the Participant Lender an amount
equal to the costs incurred by the Participant Lender or the Administrator directly as a result of
such late payment. Any payments of any kind returned for insufficient funds will be subject to an
additional handling charge of $25.00, and thereafter, the Administrator, acting on behalf of the
Participant Lender, may require the Participant Borrower to pay all future payments due on the
Revenue Anticipation Loan by money order or cashier’s check.

Section 3.07 Source of Payments. Each Participant Borrower shall repay its
Revenue Anticipation Loan solely from its Eligible Funds. Nothing contained in this Section 3.07
shall be construed to release the Participant Borrower from the performance of any of the
agreements on its part contained in or by virtue of this Master Agreement, and in the event the
Participant Borrower shall fail to perform any such agreements on its part, the Administrator,
acting on behalf of the applicable Participant Lender, may institute such action against the
Participant Borrower as it may deem necessary to compel performance so long as such action does
not abrogate the Participant Borrower’s obligations under the Revenue Anticipation or under this
Master Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 4.01 Charter. By its acceptance of any Revenue Anticipation Loan:
(a) the Participant Borrower shall be deemed to represent, warrant and covenant to the Participant
Lender that, as of the origination date of the Revenue Anticipation Loan: (i) it operates its Charter
School as a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed to operate under, the Inspire
Education Model in accordance with the terms of its Charter and applicable laws and regulations
and (ii) that it has not received any notice of violation of the Charter; (b) the Participant Borrower
further covenants and agrees to use its best efforts to: (i) maintain the Charter authorized for the
Charter School and (ii) take any and all actions required to renew or extend the term of the Charter
authorized for the Charter School for so long as the Revenue Anticipation Loan remains
outstanding. Any material revision of the Charter authorized for the Charter School shall be
deemed consistent with the terms of the preceding sentence unless such material revision in and
of itself materially and adversely affects the operations of the Charter School or the financial
condition of the Participant Borrower or the material revision causes the Charter School to cease
to operate as a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed to operate under, the Inspire
Education Model. Not later than 10 Business Days after receipt, the Participant Borrower
covenants to provide the Administrator and the Participant Lender with a copy of any notice
received from the Participant Borrower’s Charter authorizer related to such authorizer’s intent to
revoke or to deny renewal or extension of the term of the Charter granted for its Charter School or

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 13 of 42



any notice of any issues that, if not corrected or resolved, could lead to revocation or non-renewal
of the Charter granted for its Charter School.

Section 4.02 Books and Records. In addition to the requirements set forth in
Section 3.02, each Participant Borrower covenants and agrees, at all times to keep, or cause to be
kept, proper books of record and account, prepared in accordance with GAAP, consistently
applied, in which complete and accurate entries shall be made of all transactions of or in relation
to the business, properties and operations of the Participant Borrower. Such books of record and
account shall be available for inspection by the Administrator, each applicable Participant Lender
and their respective duly authorized agents, at reasonable hours and under reasonable
circumstances.

Section 4.03 Representations of Each Participant. As of the date hereof, and
as of the date a Revenue Anticipation Loan is made or incurred, the Participant Borrower and the
Participant Lender, as applicable, for such Revenue Anticipation Loan each represents and
warrants:

(a) that it is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation duly organized
and in good standing under the laws of the State and that it has been duly authorized by
proper action of its Governing Body to execute and deliver this Master Agreement and the
documents and instruments applicable to the Revenue Anticipation Loan and to observe
and perform its obligations under this Master Agreement and such Revenue Anticipation
Loan;

(b) that it has the necessary legal power and authority to execute and deliver
this Master Agreement and all Revenue Anticipation Loan documents to which it is a party
and has and will hereafter retain all necessary legal power and authority to perform all
obligations and covenants in this Master Agreement and under the Revenue Anticipation
Loan;

(©) the execution and delivery of each Revenue Anticipation Loan document
and its performance, rights and obligations thereunder do not violate any law or any of its
obligations;

(d) the Revenue Anticipation Loan documents have been duly executed and
delivered by Participant Borrower and are and shall hereafter remain the legal, valid and
binding obligations of the Participant Borrower, enforceable against the Participant
Borrower in accordance with their respective terms, except as such enforcement may be
limited by law;

(e) there is not presently pending or threatened by or against the Participant
Borrower any suit, action, proceeding, or investigation which, if determined adversely to
the Participant Borrower, would have a material adverse effect upon the Participant
Borrower’s financial condition or ability to conduct its business as such business is
presently conducted or is contemplated to be conducted in the foreseeable future, and the
Participant Borrower will give prompt written notice to the Administrator and the

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 14 of 42



Participant Lender of any litigation or governmental proceedings pending or threatened
against the Participant Borrower; and

® the Participant Borrower will prepare, execute and/or deliver such
additional instruments and documents as the Participant Lender or its counsel reasonably
may require or request in order to carry into effect the provisions and intent of this Master
Agreement.

ARTICLE V
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 5.01 Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events
shall constitute a default and breach of this Master Agreement by a Participant Borrower:

(a) the failure of the Participant Borrower to make any payment on a Revenue
Anticipation Loan when due;

(b) (1) becoming insolvent as defined by applicable State law; (ii) the making
by of any general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (iii) the
filing by or against the Participant Borrower of a petition to have the Participant Borrower
adjudged a bankrupt, or a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating
to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition filed against the Participant Borrower, the
same is dismissed or withdrawn within 60 days); (iv) the appointment of a trustee or a
receiver to take possession of substantially all of the Participant Borrower’s assets, where
possession is not restored to the Participant Borrower within 30 days; or (v) the attachment,
execution or other judicial seizure of substantially all of the Participant Borrower’s assets,
where such seizure is not discharged in 30 days;

(©) the failure of the Participant Borrower to timely observe or perform any
other covenant, condition or provision of this Master Agreement and such failure shall
continue for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof by the Administrator or the
corresponding Participant Lender to the Participant Borrower; provided, however, that if
the nature of the Participant Borrower’s default is such that more than 30 days are required
for its cure, then the Participant Borrower shall not be deemed to be in default if the
Participant Borrower commences such cure within said 30-day period and completes such
cure within 60 days after such written notice;

(d) the failure of the Participant Borrower to maintain its Charter to operate its
Charter School or otherwise comply with the requirements of the California Education
Code and such failure continues for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof by the
Administrator or the corresponding Participant Lender to the Participant Borrower;
provided, however, that if the nature of the Participant Borrower’s default is such that more
than 30 days are required for its cure, then the Participant Borrower shall not be deemed to
be in default if the Participant Borrower commences such cure within such 30-day period
and completes such cure within 60 days after such written notice;

-10 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 15 of 42



(e) the Participant Borrower ceases to operate a public charter school based
upon the Inspire Education Model;

® the Participant Borrower fails to use commercially reasonable efforts,
including negotiation with its other creditors, to reduce its debt and liabilities;

(2) the Participant Borrower fails to obtain any necessary approvals, consents,
authorizations, licenses, certificates and waivers required by law or reasonably necessary
to properly effectuate this Master Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder and
under the Revenue Anticipation Loan;

(h) any representation or warranty made by the Participant Borrower under this
Master Agreement or in connection with any Revenue Anticipation Loan shall be untrue,
incomplete or misleading in any material respect.

Section 5.02 Remedies in Default. If a Participant Borrower is in default under
the provisions of Section 5.01, then the applicable Participant Lender or the Administrator acting
on such Participant Lender’s behalf shall have the right to take such action as may be available to
it under this Master Agreement or under applicable law, including, without limitation, to declare
the remaining amount due under the applicable Revenue Anticipation Loan to be due and payable
in full immediately.

ARTICLE VI
ADMISSION AND WITHDRAWAL OF PARTICIPANTS; THE ADMINISTRATOR

Section 6.01 Effect of Admission as a Participant. Any Person, upon admission
as a Participant as provided in Section 6.02, shall be subject to all of the covenants, conditions and
limitations imposed by this Master Agreement on any Participant.

Section 6.02 Admission of a Participant. Any Person not a Participant as of
July 1, 2019, may be admitted as a Participant under this Master Agreement if:

(a) such Person operates a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed
to operate under, the Inspire Education Model;

(b) such Person, pursuant to authorization under a Board Resolution duly
adopted by its Governing Body, shall execute and deliver to the Administrator, in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit D, a Certificate by which such Person agrees: (i) to become a
Participant hereunder subject to compliance with all provisions of this Master Agreement
and (ii) to perform its obligations with respect to each Revenue Anticipation Loan for
which it is a Participant Lender or Participant Borrower, as applicable;

(©) the Administrator shall have determined as a factual matter that such Person
has satisfied the conditions provided in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for the admission of
such Person as a Participant hereunder ; and

11 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 16 of 42



(d) the roster of Participants maintained as Exhibit B hereto shall be amended
by the Administrator to add such Person as a Participant.

Each successor, assignee, surviving, resulting or transferee corporation of a Participant must agree
to become, and satisfy the above-described conditions to becoming, a Participant prior to any such
succession, assignment or other change in such Participant’s corporate status.

Section 6.03 Withdrawal of a Participant or the Administrator. Each of the
Participants and the Administrator covenants that it will not take any action, corporate or
otherwise, which would cause it or any successor thereto into which it is merged or consolidated
to withdraw and cease to be a Participant hereunder unless:

(a) prior to and immediately after such withdrawal as a Participant, no default
on the part of such Participant exists hereunder or under any Revenue Anticipation Loan
for which the Participant is a Participant Borrower;

(b) prior to such withdrawal, the Participant shall not be a Participant Borrower
under any Revenue Anticipation Loan then outstanding and not paid in full;

(©) prior to such withdrawal, the Administrator shall have consented thereto;
and

(d) the roster of Participants maintained as Exhibit B hereto shall be amended
by the Administrator to delete such Person as a Participant.

Section 6.04 Appointment of Administrator. Each Participant, by becoming a
Participant hereunder, irrevocably appoints the Administrator to act in that capacity hereunder. In
the event that the Administrator withdraws as a Participant pursuant to Section 6.03, the remaining
Participants, by execution of a Certificate hereunder, shall designate one such Participant to act as
Administrator pursuant to this Section 6.04.

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 7.01 Indemnification. = Each Participant Borrower shall defend,
indemnify, and hold each Participant Lender and the Administrator and their respective employees,
officers, directors, and agents, free and harmless against any liability, loss, claims, demands,
damages, expenses, and costs (including attorneys’ fees, expert witness fees, and other costs of
litigation or other proceedings) of every kind or nature arising in any manner out of the
performance of its respective obligations under this Master Agreement or Revenue Anticipation
Loan, except for such loss or damage caused solely by the negligence or willful misconduct of the
corresponding Participant Lender or the Administrator, as applicable.

Section 7.02  Fiduciary Obligations. The respective Governing Body of each
Participant has reviewed this Master Agreement and the applicable Revenue Anticipation Loan
documents in good faith, and in a manner in which it considers to be in its best interests, and with
such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary prudent Person in a like position would use

-12 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 17 of 42



under similar circumstances, and has determined that the applicable Revenue Anticipation Loan
documents are in its best interests, and that the terms thereof and hereof are fair and reasonable.

Section 7.03 Assignment. No Participant shall assign this Master Agreement,
any interest in this Master Agreement or under any Revenue Anticipation Loan document, or its
respective rights or obligations hereunder and thereunder without the express prior written consent
of the corresponding Participant. This Master Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to
the benefit of, the Participants and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

Section 7.04 Notice. Any notice given under this Master Agreement shall be in
writing and served either personally or sent by prepaid certified first class mail, overnight delivery
service, courier or Electronic Means addressed to the Administrator acting on behalf of each
applicable Participant. Notice by mail shall be deemed to be communicated five Business Days
from the date of mailing. Notice by overnight delivery service shall be deemed to be
communicated three Business Days from the date of shipping. Notice by courier or Electronic
Means shall be deemed to be communicated the Business Day immediately after the date of
transmittal.

Section 7.05 Amendments. No supplement, modification, or amendment of this
Master Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and executed the Administrator and the
Participants.

Section 7.06 Entire Agreement. This Master Agreement and the Revenue
Anticipation Loan documents executed and delivered pursuant hereto shall constitute the entire
agreement among the Participants and the Administrator with respect to the subject matter
contained herein and supersedes all agreements, representations and understandings of the
Participants and the Administrator with respect to such subject matter made or entered into prior
to the date of this Master Agreement.

Section 7.07 Arm’s Length and Independent Counsel. This Master Agreement
has been negotiated at arm’s length and between Persons sophisticated and knowledgeable in the
matters herein set forth. Accordingly, any rule of law or legal decision that would require
interpretation of any ambiguities against the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is hereby
waived. The provisions of this Master Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to
effect the purposes of the Participants, the Administrator and this Master Agreement. Each
Participant has been advised by, or had opportunity to seek advice from, its independent counsel
regarding this Master Agreement.

Section 7.08 No Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Master Agreement
shall constitute, or be deemed to constitute, a waiver of any other provision, nor shall any waiver
constitute a continuing waiver. No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the
Participant making the waiver.

Section 7.09 Severability. If any provision of this Master Agreement is invalid
or contravenes State law, such provision shall be deemed not to be a part of this Master Agreement
and shall not affect the validity or enforceability of its remaining provisions, unless such invalidity
or unenforceability would defeat an essential purpose of this Master Agreement.

-13 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 18 of 42



Section 7.10 Governing Law. This Master Agreement shall be governed by and
interpreted under the laws of the State.

Section 7.11 Counterparts. This Master Agreement may be executed in two or
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall
constitute one instrument. An electronic copy of the fully executed original version of this Master
Agreement shall have the same legal effect as an executed original for all purposes.

Section 7.12 No Third Party Beneficiary. No Person who is not a party to this
Master Agreement is an intended beneficiary and no non-party to this Master Agreement shall
have any rights hereunder.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

-14 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 19 of 42



July 1, 2019.

DOCS 3680280.8
Page 20 of 42

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Master Credit Agreement is duly executed as of

INSPIRE CHARTER SCHOOL - LOS ANGELES,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

INSPIRE CHARTER SCHOOL - SOUTH,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

INSPIRE CHARTER SCHOOL - NORTH,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

WINSHIP COMMUNITY SCHOOL,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

INSPIRE CHARTER SCHOOL - CENTRAL,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

CLARKSVILLE CHARTER SCHOOL,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By
[Name and Title]

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE]

-15-



DOCS 3680280.8
Page 21 of 42

PACIFIC COAST ACADEMY,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By

[Name and Title]

INSPIRE EDUCATION FOUNDATION,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By

[Name and Title]

INSPIRE UNIVERSITY,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By

[Name and Title]

HEARTLAND CHARTER SCHOOL,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By

[Name and Title]

PROVENANCE,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By

[Name and Title]

-16 -



EXHIBITS TO MASTER CREDIT AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT A: Schedule of Outstanding Loan Balances
EXHIBIT B: Roster of Participants
EXHIBIT C: Form of Revenue Anticipation Promissory Note

EXHIBIT D: Form of Certificate of Admission as a Participant

-17 -
DOCS 3680280.8
Page 22 of 42



EXHIBIT A

Schedule of Preliminary Outstanding Loan Balances

Lending Party Receiving Party Balance”
Inspire LA District $2,377,904.78
Inspire North Jitterbug $50,000.00
Inspire Winship District $371,362.44
Inspire Central University $20,000.00
Inspire District Office South $2,391,991.42
Inspire District Office North $2,566,913.38
Inspire District Office Kern $4,278,340.04
Inspire District Office Central $4,292,721.15
Inspire District Office Clarksville $28,782.44
Inspire District Office PCA $3,359,803.08
Inspire District Office Foundation $2,907,230.83
Inspire District Office Heartland $4,632,820.24
Inspire District Office University $99,000.00
Inspire Jitterbug Kern $320,000.00
Inspire Jitterbug Central $100,000.00
Inspire Jitterbug Foundation $46,310.00
Inspire Heartland Jitterbug $50,000.00
Inspire Heartland University $70,000.00
Inspire SD Enrichment ~ District $22,789.24
Inspire SD Enrichment ~ Foundation $15,500
Inspire University Foundation $100,400.00

* Subject to adjustment in the course of reconciling and closing financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019.

A-1
Page 23 of 42



EXHIBIT B
Roster of Participants

Inspire Charter School — Los Angeles, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Inspire Charter School — South, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Inspire Charter School — North, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Winship Community School, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Inspire Charter School — Central, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Clarksville Charter School, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Pacific Coast Academy, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

Inspire Education Foundation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Inspire University, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

Heartland Charter School, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
Provenance, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

B-1
Page 24 of 42



EXHIBIT C
Form of Revenue Anticipation Promissory Note

PROMISSORY NOTE
S[AMOUNT] [DATE OF EXECUTION]

For value received, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [NAME
OF PARTICIPANT BORROWER], a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“Participant
Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to [NAME OF PARTICIPANT LENDER], a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation (“Participant Lender”), the principal sum of [AMOUNT], or
such lesser amounts as may be loaned by Participant Lender to Participant Borrower from time to
time and may be outstanding, until this Promissory Note is fully paid.

This Promissory Note is issued pursuant, and is subject, to the Master Credit Agreement,
dated as of July I, 2019 (“Master Agreement”), by and among the Participants and the
Administrator as parties thereto. The terms and conditions of the Master Agreement are hereby
incorporated by reference. This Promissory Note is a promissory note referred to in Section 3.02
of the Master Agreement.

The principal hereof shall be due and payable in lawful money of the United States of
America under the terms and conditions provided in the Master Agreement. Upon the occurrence
of any one or more of the events of default specified in the Master Agreement, all amounts then
remaining unpaid on this Promissory Note shall become, or may be declared to be, immediately
due and payable, to the extent provided for in the Master Agreement. Time is of the essence
hereof.

Participant Borrower waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand, notice of protest,
notice of dishonor and notice of nonpayment of this Promissory Note.

The validity, interpretation and enforceability of and the rights and obligations of the
Participant Lender and the undersigned Participant Borrower shall be governed by, interpreted and
construed in accordance only with the laws of the State of California, the state in which this
Promissory Note is executed and delivered.

[NAME OF PARTICIPANT BORROWER],
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

Page 25 of 42



EXHIBIT D
Form of Certificate of Admission as a Participant

This Certificate of Admission as a Participant (“Certificate”) is executed by the
undersigned pursuant to Section 6.02 of that certain Master Credit Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2019 (the
“Master Agreement”), initially by and among Inspire Charter School — Los Angeles, Inspire Charter School
— South, Inspire Charter School — North, Winship Community School, Inspire Charter School — Central,
Clarksville Charter School, Pacific Coast Academy, Inspire Education Foundation, Inspire University,
Heartland Charter School and Provenance (each, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation). Except
as otherwise defined in this Certificate, all capitalized terms used herein shall have the definitions ascribed
to them in the Master Agreement. The Master Agreement, including without limitation all of the exhibits
thereto, are by this reference incorporated in full in this Certificate. The undersigned hereby certifies that
pursuant to its duly adopted Board Resolution it has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this
Certificate.

By its execution of this Certificate, the undersigned agrees to become a Participant under
the Master Agreement, effective upon the approval and signature hereof by the Administrator. The
undersigned further agrees to perform its obligations as a Participant with respect to each Revenue
Anticipation Loan for which it is a Participant Lender or Participant Borrower, as applicable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Certificate is duly executed as of [DATE], 2019.
[NAME],

a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

ADMINISTRATOR APPROVAL

Acting in solely in its capacity as Administrator under the above-referenced Master Credit
Agreement and pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.02 thereof, the undersigned hereby determines that
the conditions provided in said Section 6.02 have been satisfied and, accordingly, hereby approves the
admission of the above-named signatory as a Participant thereunder, effective as of the date shown above,
and hereby agrees, in accordance with the provisions of said Section 6.02, forthwith to amend the roster of
Participants maintained as Exhibit B to the Master Credit Agreement.

PROVENANCE,
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation,
as Administrator

By:

Name:

Title:

D-1
Page 26 of 42



RESOLUTION NO. 2019 -3

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MISSION VISTA
ACADEMY APPROVING AND ACCEPTING A REVENUE
ANTICIPATION LOAN

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy (the “School”) is a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation whose charitable purposes include the operation of one or more California
public charter schools;

WHEREAS, Blue Ridge Academy is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
whose charitable purposes include the operation of one or more California public charter schools;

WHEREAS, Blue Ridge Academy has a surplus of funds not needed for current budgeted
expenses or for maintaining operating reserves;

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy is a new school whose beginning operations have
already begun. However, Mission Vista will not receive PENSEC money until the month of
October;

WHEREAS, a Revenue Anticipation Loan does not violate any other contracts or
obligations, and is consistent with the MOU between Mission Vista Academy and the School’s
authorizer;

WHEREAS, Mission Vista Academy will use the loan proceeds solely for the operations
of its California charter school, consistent with all laws, regulations, and the charter;

NOW, THEREFORE, this Board of Directors of the School does hereby approve
receiving a loan of $5 million dollars from Blue Ridge Academy and accept the executed
Promissory Note in the same form as the Promissory Note attached hereto as Exhibit A pursuant
to the Master Credit Agreement.

Page 27 of 42



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I , Secretary of the Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, hereby certify as follows:

The attached is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting
of the Board of Directors of Mission Vista Academy which was duly held on July 19, 2019, at
which meeting all of the members of the Board of Directors had due notice and at which a quorum
thereof was present; and at such meeting such resolutions were adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of such meeting on file and
of record in my office; the attached resolution is a full, true, and correct copy of the original
resolution adopted at such meeting and entered in such minutes; and such resolution has not been

amended, modified, or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now in full force
and effect.

WITNESS my hand on ,2019.

Secretary of the Board of Directors of
Mission Vista Academy

Page 28 of 42



Exhibit A

Promissory Note

Page 29 of 42



PROMISSORY NOTE
$5,000,000 8/22/2019

For value received, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Mission
Vista Academy a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (“Participant Borrower”), hereby
promises to pay to Blue Ridge Academy, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
(“Participant Lender”), the principal sum of $5,000,000 or such lesser amounts as may be loaned
by Participant Lender to Participant Borrower from time to time and may be outstanding, until this
Promissory Note is fully paid.

This Promissory Note is issued pursuant, and is subject, to the Master Credit Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2019 (“Master Agreement”), by and among the Participants and the
Administrator as parties thereto. The terms and conditions of the Master Agreement are hereby
incorporated by reference. This Promissory Note is a promissory note referred to in Section 3.02
of the Master Agreement.

The principal hereof shall be due and payable in lawful money of the United States of
America under the terms and conditions provided in the Master Agreement. Upon the occurrence
of any one or more of the events of default specified in the Master Agreement, all amounts then
remaining unpaid on this Promissory Note shall become, or may be declared to be, immediately
due and payable, to the extent provided for in the Master Agreement. Time is of the essence
hereof.

Participant Borrower waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand, notice of protest,
notice of dishonor and notice of nonpayment of this Promissory Note.

The validity, interpretation and enforceability of and the rights and obligations of the
Participant Lender and the undersigned Participant Borrower shall be governed by, interpreted and
construed in accordance only with the laws of the State of California, the state in which this
Promissory Note is executed and delivered.

Mission Vista Academy
a California nonprofit public benefit corporation

By:

Name:

Title:

Page 30 of 42



Mission Vista Academy
Monthly Cash Flow/Forecast FY19-20

Revised 8/13/19
ADA = 3397.66
Revenues

State Aid - Revenue Limit
8011 LCFF State Aid
8012 Education Protection Account
8096 In Lieu of Property Taxes

Federal Revenue
8181 Special Education - Entitlement

Other State Revenue
8311 State Special Education
8560 State Lottery

Total Revenue

Expenses
Certificated Salaries
1100 Teachers' Salaries
1175 Teachers' Extra Duty/Stipends
1200 Pupil Support Salaries
1300 Administrators' Salaries

Classified Salaries
2100 Instructional Salaries

Benefits
3101 STRS
3301 OASDI
3311 Medicare
3401 Health and Welfare
3501 State Unemployment
3601 Workers' Compensation
3901 Other Benefits

Books and Supplies
4302 School Supplies
4305 Software
4310 Office Expense
4311 Business Meals
4400 Noncapitalized Equipment

Subagreement Services
5102 Special Education
5106 Other Educational Consultants
5107 Instructional Services

Operations and Housekeeping
5201 Auto and Travel
5300 Dues & Memberships
5400 Insurance
5501 Utilities
5502 Janitorial Services
5900 Communications
5901 Postage and Shipping

Page 31 of 42

¥ CHARTER

Year-End
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Jun-20

Accruals
- - - 9,167,885 - - 3,637,175 - 2,026,801 2,026,801 2,026,801 2,026,801 2,026,801
- - - 180,800 - - 180,800 - - 148,049 - - 169,883
- - - - - - - - 1,182,780 1,182,780 1,182,780 1,182,780 1,182,780
- - - 9,348,685 - - 3,817,975 - 3,209,581 3,357,630 3,209,581 3,209,581 3,379,464
- - - - - - - 70,671 70,671 70,671 70,671 70,671 0
- - - - - - - 70,671 70,671 70,671 70,671 70,671 0
- - - - - - - 321,419 321,419 321,419 321,419 321,419 0
- - - - - - - - - - - - 703,316
- - - - - - - 321,419 321,419 321,419 321,419 321,419 703,316
- - - 9,348,685 - - 3,817,975 392,090 3,601,671 3,749,720 3,601,671 3,601,671 4,082,780
668,056 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 710,500 -
19,016 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 85,260 -
10,611 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 20,417 -
69,792 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 55,417 -
767,475 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 871,593 -
4,264 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 -
4,264 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 4,354 -
129,417 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 150,541 -
258 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 270 -
11,012 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 12,828 -
86,968 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 101,250 -
25,191 3,969 3,969 3,969 3,969 3,969 19,845 15,876 7,938 3,969 3,969 3,969 -
13,000 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 12,386 -
265,846 281,245 281,245 281,245 281,245 281,245 297,121 293,152 285,214 281,245 281,245 281,245 -
171,691 154,088 154,088 215,724 215,724 308,176 308,176 308,176 308,176 308,176 308,176 400,629 -
16,482 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 49,549 -
425 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 -
- 297 297 297 297 297 297 297 297 297 297 297 -
- 23,277 23,277 32,588 32,588 46,554 46,554 46,554 46,554 46,554 46,554 60,520 -
188,598 232,874 232,874 303,820 303,820 410,240 410,240 410,240 410,240 410,240 410,240 516,659 -
2,940 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 77,863 -
46,257 230,385 230,385 322,538 322,538 460,769 460,769 460,769 460,769 460,769 460,769 599,000 -
- - - 1,075,099 - - 439,067 45,090 414,192 431,218 414,192 414,192 469,520
49,197 308,248 308,248 1,475,500 400,401 538,632 977,699 583,723 952,824 969,850 952,824 1,091,055 469,520
512 - - - - - 14,304 14,304 14,304 14,304 - - -
- 3,760 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 -
8,500 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 7,749 -
- 874 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 416 -
- 250 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 119 -
- 3,760 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 1,789 -
- - 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 5,008 -
9,012 16,394 16,872 16,872 16,872 16,872 31,176 31,176 31,176 31,176 16,872 16,872 -

IMPACT
Annual Favorable /
Budget (Unfav.)
ADA = 4494.00
31,192,009 (8,252,942)
898,890 (219,358)
7,555,935  (1,642,035)
39,646,834 (10,114,336)
467,423 (114,066)
467,423 (114,066)
2,125,875 (518,782)
916,868 (213,552)
3,042,743 (732,334)
43,156,999 (10,960,736)
11,820,000 3,336,444
1,182,000 225,124
245,000 9,806
665,000 (14,375)
13,912,000 3,556,999
- (52,160)
- (52,160)
2,323,304 537,935
- (3,233)
201,724 49,599
1,582,500 381,782
103,390 2,788
194,768 45,521
4,405,686 1,014,394
4,209,633 1,048,631
1,226,985 665,461
94,383 31,668
4,719 1,449
601,376 149,804
6,137,096 1,897,013
1,393,280 533,846
6,013,761 1,498,044
4,963,055 1,260,485
12,370,096 3,292,374
75,687 17,958
28,405 6,750
123,013 29,269
6,607 1,570
1,888 449
28,405 6,750
66,248 16,167
330,252 78,912




Mission Vista Academy

Monthly Cash Flow/Forecast FY19-20

Revised 8/13/19
ADA = 3397.66

Facilities, Repairs and Other Leases
5601 Rent
5602 Additional Rent
5610 Repairs and Maintenance

Professional/Consulting Services
5802 Audit & Taxes
5803 Legal
5804 Professional Development
5805 General Consulting
5806 Special Activities/Field Trips
5807 Bank Charges
5808 Printing
5809 Other taxes and fees
5811 Management Fee
5812 District Service & Oversight Fee
5814 SPED Encroachment
5815 Public Relations/Recruitment

Interest
7438 Interest Expense

Total Expenses
Monthly Surplus (Deficit)

Cash Flow Adjustments

Monthly Surplus (Deficit)

Cash flows from operating activities
Public Funding Receivables
Due To/From Related Parties
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Factoring
Payments on Factoring

Total Change in Cash
Cash, Beginning of Month

Cash, End of Month

Page 32 of 42

Year-End
Dec-19 Jan-20 Mar-20 Jun-20
Accruals

- 15,510 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 5,663 -

- 595 283 283 283 283 283 283 283 283 283 283 -

- 2,505 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 1,192 -

- 18,610 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 7,138 -

- - - 7,158 7,158 7,158 - - - - - - -

17,701 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 5,960 -

- - 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 7,223 -

750 - 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 5,096 -
50,953 43,927 43,927 61,498 61,498 87,855 87,855 87,855 87,855 87,855 87,855 114,211 -

- - 285 285 285 285 285 285 285 285 285 285 -

- - 428 428 428 428 428 428 428 428 428 428 -

160 - 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 -

- - - 327,204 - - 133,629 13,723 126,058 131,240 126,058 126,058 142,897

- - - 280,461 - - 114,539 - 96,287 100,729 96,287 96,287 101,384

- - - - - - - 31,367 31,367 31,367 31,367 31,367 -

- - 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 2,861 -
69,564 49,887 67,480 699,874 92,209 118,566 359,576 156,498 365,121 374,744 365,121 391,477 244,281

- - - - 124,000 - 113,501 72,965 - - 72,965 - -

- - - - 124,000 - 113,501 72,965 - - 72,965 - -
1,353,955 1,783,206 1,789,805 3,660,396 2,101,633 2,248,639 3,072,398 2,430,838 2,927,660 2,950,340 2,982,352 3,180,393 713,801
(1,353,955) (1,783,206) (1,789,805) 5,688,289 (2,101,633) (2,248,639) 745,577 (2,038,748) 674,011 799,380 619,319 421,278 3,368,979
(1,353,955) (1,783,206) (1,789,805) 5,688,289 (2,101,633) (2,248,639) 745,577  (2,038,748) 674,011 799,380 619,319 421,278 3,368,979
- - - - - - - - - - - - (4,082,780)
757,951 4,242,049 - (5,000,000) - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - - 713,801
601,005 - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - - 3,100,000 - 2,837,522 1,824,121 - - 1,824,121 - -

- - - - - - (3,100,000) - - (1,418,761) (1,418,761) (1,824,121) -

5,000 2,458,843  (1,789,805) 688,289 998,367  (2,248,639) 483,099 (214,627) 674,011 (619,381) 1,024,680 (1,402,843)
- 5,000 2,463,843 674,039 1,362,327 2,360,694 112,055 595,154 380,526 1,054,537 435,157 1,459,836
5,000 2,463,843 674,039 1,362,327 2,360,694 112,055 595,154 380,526 1,054,537 435,157 1,459,836 56,993

N CHARTER
IMPACT

Annual Favorable /

Budget (Unfav.)
141,935 69,797
4,494 1,068
18,922 4,496
165,351 75,362
28,405 6,932
94,608 11,346
95,552 23,318
67,417 15,702
1,202,752 299,609
3,775 921
5,663 1,382
22,472 5,324
1,510,495 383,626
1,189,405 303,430
207,464 50,628
37,843 9,235
4,465,852 1,111,452
411,600 28,169
411,600 28,169
42,197,933 11,002,516
959,066 41,780




Mission Vista Academy

CHARTER

IMPACT
Multi-Year Forecast
Revised 8/13/19
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast
Assumptions
LCFF COLA 3.26% 3.00% 2.80% 3.16% 3.20%
Non-LCFF Revenue COLA n/a 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expense COLA 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Enrollment 3,467.00 3,814.00 4,195.00 4,405.00 4,626.00
Average Daily Attendance 3,397.66 3,737.72 4,111.10 4,316.90 4,533.48
Revenues
State Aid - Revenue Limit
8011 LCFF State Aid 22,939,067 26,210,289 29,858,712 32,610,656 35,622,628
8012 Education Protection Account 679,532 747,544 822,220 863,380 906,696
8096 In Lieu of Property Taxes 5,913,899 6,505,801 7,155,698 7,513,910 7,890,885
29,532,498 33,463,634 37,836,630 40,987,946 44,420,208
Federal Revenue
8181 Special Education - Entitlement 353,357 388,723 427,554 448,958 471,482
353,357 388,723 427,554 448,958 471,482
Other State Revenue
8311 State Special Education 1,607,093 1,767,942 1,944,550 2,041,894 2,144,336
8550 Mandated Cost - 61,431 67,576 74,342 78,077
8560 State Lottery 703,316 773,708 850,998 893,598 938,430
2,310,409 2,603,081 2,863,124 3,009,834 3,160,843
Total Revenue $ 32,196,263 $ 36,455,437 $ 41,127,309 S 44,446,738 $ 48,052,533
Expenses
Certificated Salaries
1100 Teachers' Salaries 8,483,556 9,572,088 10,721,780 11,458,406 12,284,509
1175 Teachers' Extra Duty/Stipends 956,876 957,209 1,072,178 1,145,841 1,228,451
1200 Pupil Support Salaries 235,194 274,890 308,427 330,325 353,778
1300 Administrators' Salaries 679,375 746,130 837,158 896,596 960,254
10,355,001 11,550,317 12,939,542 13,831,168 14,826,992
Classified Salaries
2100 Instructional Salaries 52,160 58,624 65,776 70,446 75,448
52,160 58,624 65,776 70,446 75,448
Benefits
3101 STRS 1,785,369 2,125,258 2,342,057 2,503,441 2,683,686
3301 OASDI 3,233 3,635 4,078 4,368 4,678
3311 Medicare 152,125 168,330 188,577 201,573 216,085
3401 Health and Welfare 1,200,718 1,363,995 1,528,061 1,633,370 1,750,963
3501 State Unemployment 100,602 87,367 95,957 100,559 105,684
3601 Workers' Compensation 149,247 162,525 182,074 194,623 208,634
3,391,292 3,911,110 4,340,805 4,637,934 4,969,731
Books and Supplies
4302 School Supplies 3,161,002 3,546,924 3,979,269 4,262,039 4,565,384
4305 Software 561,523 630,079 706,881 757,113 810,999
4310 Office Expense 62,716 70,372 78,950 84,561 90,579
4311 Business Meals 3,270 3,670 4,117 4,409 4,723
4400 Noncapitalized Equipment 451,572 460,603 469,815 479,212 488,796
4,240,083 4,711,647 5,239,032 5,587,333 5,960,481
Subagreement Services
5102 Special Education 859,433 964,360 1,081,909 1,158,790 1,241,266
5106 Other Educational Consultants 4,515,718 5,067,034 5,684,670 6,088,627 6,521,977
5107 Instructional Services 3,702,570 4,192,375 4,729,641 5,111,375 5,526,041
9,077,721 10,223,769 11,496,219 12,358,792 13,289,284

Page 33 of 42




Mission Vista Academy

CHARTER

IMPACT
Multi-Year Forecast
Revised 8/13/19
2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast | | Forecast
Operations and Housekeeping
5201 Auto and Travel 57,729 64,777 72,673 77,837 83,377
5300 Dues & Memberships 21,655 24,299 27,260 29,198 31,276
5400 Insurance 93,744 105,190 118,011 126,397 135,394
5501 Utilities 5,036 5,651 6,340 6,791 7,274
5502 Janitorial Services 1,439 1,615 1,812 1,940 2,078
5900 Communications 21,655 24,299 27,260 29,198 31,276
5901 Postage and Shipping 50,082 56,196 63,046 67,526 72,332
251,340 282,026 316,402 338,886 363,006
Facilities, Repairs and Other Leases
5601 Rent 72,137 80,945 90,811 97,264 104,187
5602 Additional Rent 3,427 3,845 4,314 4,620 4,949
5610 Repairs and Maintenance 14,425 16,186 18,159 19,450 20,834
89,989 100,976 113,284 121,334 129,970
Professional/Consulting Services
5802 Audit & Taxes 21,473 21,903 22,341 22,788 23,243
5803 Legal 83,262 84,927 86,626 88,358 90,126
5804 Professional Development 72,234 81,053 90,933 97,395 104,327
5805 General Consulting 51,715 58,029 65,102 69,728 74,691
5806 Special Activities/Field Trips 903,144 1,013,407 1,136,934 1,217,725 1,304,395
5807 Bank Charges 2,854 3,202 3,593 3,848 4,122
5808 Printing 4,281 4,804 5,389 5,772 6,183
5809 Other taxes and fees 17,148 19,242 21,587 23,121 24,767
5811 Management Fee 1,126,869 1,275,940 1,439,456 1,555,636 1,681,839
5812 District Service & Oversight Fee 885,975 1,003,909 1,135,099 1,229,638 1,332,606
5814 SPED Encroachment 156,836 172,533 189,768 199,268 209,265
5815 Public Relations/Recruitment 28,608 29,180 29,764 30,359 30,967
3,354,400 3,768,130 4,226,592 4,543,638 4,886,531
Interest
7438 Interest Expense 383,431 227,319 9,773 - -
383,431 227,319 9,773 - -
Total Expenses $ 31,195,417 $ 34,833,917 $ 38,747,426 $ 41,489,530 $ 44,501,442
Surplus (Deficit) $ 1,000,846 $ 1,621,520 $ 2,379,883 $ 2,957,208 $ 3,551,091
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year S - S 1,000,846 S 2,622,366 S 5,002,249 S 7,959,457
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 1,000,846 S 2,622,366 $ 5,002,249 S 7,959,457 $ 11,510,548
3.2% 7.5% 12.9% 19.2%  25.9%]
Cash Flow Adjustments
Surplus (Deficit) 1,000,846 1,621,520 2,379,883 2,957,208 3,551,091
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Public Funding Receivables (4,082,780) 80,220 (501,166) 132,895 (354,940)
Accounts Payable 713,801 (594,546) 14,951 (4,826) 10,460
Accrued Expenses 601,005 - - - -
Cash Flows From Financing Activities - -
Proceeds from Factoring 9,585,764 5,682,977 244,322 - -
Payments on Factoring (7,761,643) (6,720,727) (1,030,692) - -
Total Change in Cash 56,993 69,444 1,107,298 3,085,277 3,206,612
Cash, Beginning of Year - 56,993 126,437 1,233,734 4,319,011
Cash, End of Year S 56,993 S 126,437 S 1,233,734 S 4,319,011 $ 7,525,623

Page 34 of 42




Charter School Application for

CalSTRS Activation

ES1026 (NEW 05/16)

CALSIRS

California State Teachers’ Retirement System
P.O. Box 15275, MS 17

Sacramento, CA 95851-0275

800-228-5453

CalSTRS.com

Instructions

Prior to submitting contributions to CalSTRS, charter school must complete and submit the Charter School Application for
CalSTRS Activation (ES1026) packet. Please complete all the following sections and the required documents. Email completed
Charter School Application for CalSTRS Activation (ES1026) packet to CharterSchoolQuestions@CalSTRS.com.

Section 1-A: Charter School Profile Summary

ORGANIZATION NAME (CHARTER SCHOOL NAME)

Mission Vista Academy

CHARTER SCHOOL NUMBER (SBE 4-digit no.):
2049

CORPORATION NAME (if applicable):

ﬁ Non Profit

Mission Vista Academy O For Profit
CHARTERING AUTHORITY:
Beaumont Unified District
LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT: COUNTY:
Beaumont Unified District Riverside County
SCHOOL START DATE: CALSTRS COVERAGE EFFECTIVE DATE:
7/1/2019 7119
PRE-TAX CONTRIBUTIONS EFFECTIVE DATE: CHARTER TERM FISCAL YEAR PERIOD:
(reference: EPMC form) (reference: Charter Petition/MOU/Board Minutes)
711/2019 FROM: 21172019 10" 6/30/2024
CONTACT NAME and TITLE:
Isela Chavez
CONTACT TELEPHONE: CONTACT E-MAIL ADDRESS:

(626) 317-0112 ext 1135

isela@inspireschools.org

MAILING ADDRESS:
1740 Huntington Dr. Ste 205

CITY, STATE and ZIP CODE:
Duarte, CA 91010

OFFICIAL SIGNATURE

SIGNATURE DATE

Section 1-B: CalSTRS Contributions Report Structure
To be completed by the County Office of Education (COE) or the Authorizing District

Please select transmittal and data reporting structure of CalSTRS Contributions

(J COE Report Unit ID (combined with authorizing COE)

Organization Code

O School District Report Unit ID (combined with authorizing School District)

(RU ID# XX-XXX)

O3 Charter School District Report Unit ID (combined with charter schools of the same

corporation located within the same county)

O New Report Unit ID (Independent from Charter School District, COE and School District)

HIIIIII Imﬂm;ﬂmlﬂ”mmi ml CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION FOR CALSTRS ACTIVATION (ES1026) = NEW 05/16 « Page 1 of 4
ES1026




Charter School Application for
CalSTRS Activation CALSTRS

continued

Section 2: EPMC - Employer Paid Member Contributions Resolution

¢ School Board - Charter School’'s School Board or the authorizing School District's School Board.
e County Superintendent of Schools - County Office of Education (COE).
e Charter School - Charter School Name.

Whereas, the _Mission Vista Academy School Board [ KWV E(SId €
County Superintendent of Schools] has the authority to implement the provisions of internal Revenue Code (IRC) section
414(h)(2); and

Whereas, the Teachers’ Retirement Board of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) adopted its
resolution of IRC section 414(h)(2) on May 17, 1985; and

Whereas, the Internal Revenue Service has stated on August 27, 1985, that the implementation of the provisions of IRC section
414(h)(2) pursuant to the resolution of the Teachers' Retirement Board would satisfy the legal requirements of IRC section
414(h)(2); and

Mission Vista Academy , .
Whereas, the School Board [_Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] has determined that even though the implementation of the provisions of IRC section

414(h)(2) is not required by law, the tax benefit offered by IRC section 414(h)(2) should be provided to its employees who are
members of CalSTRS.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

| Thatthe Mission Vista Academy School Board [ Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] will implement the provisions of IRC section 414(h)(2) by making employee
contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of its employees who are members of CalSTRS. “Employee contributions” shall mean
those contributions to CalSTRS which are deducted from the salary of employees and are credited to individual

employees’ accounts.

Il That the contributions made by the __Mission Vista Academy Charter School
[ Riverside County Superintendent of Schools) to CalSTRS, although designated
as employee contributions, are being paid by the _Mission Vista Academy Charter

School [ Riverside County Superintendent of Schools] in lieu of contributions

by the employees who are members of CalSTRS.

Ill. - That employees shall not have the option of choosing to receive the contributed amounts directly instead of having them

paid by the Mission Vista Academy Gharer Schiooi

[ Riverside County Superintendent of Schools] to CalSTRS.

CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION FOR CALSTRS ACTIVATION (ES1026) « NEW 05/16 = Page 2 of 4
Page 36 of 42




Charter School Application for T
CalSTRS Activation CALS RS

continued

Section 2: EPMC Resolution (continued)

V. That the Mission Vista Academy Charter School [ Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] shall pay to CalSTRS the contributions designated as employee contributions from

the same source of funds as used in paying salary.

V. That the Amount of the contributions designated as employee contributions and paid by the
Mission Vista Academy Charter School [ Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] to CalSTRS on behalf of an employee shall be the entire contribution required of the
employee by the Teachers’ Retirement Law (California Education Code sections 22000 et seq.).
VI. That the contributions designated as employee contributions made by ___Mission Vista Academy
Charter School [_Riverside County Superintendent of Schools] to CalSTRS shall be
treated for all purposes, other than taxation, in the same way that member contributions are treated by CalSTRS.

VI That the Mission Vista Academy Charter School | Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] shall make no contributions designated as employee contributions until CalSTRS has

developed and implemented procedures for administering the provisions of IRC section 414(h)(2) and until CalSTRS has

officially notified the ___Mission Vista Academy Charter School

[ Riverside

County Superintendent of Schools] that it will accept contributions

pursuant to IRC section 414(h)(2).

EPMC RESOLUTION EFFECTIVE DATE: DATE ADOPTED BY THE SCHOOL BOARD:
(must be the same as CalSTRS coverage effective date)

7/1/2019

OFFICIAL’S NAME and TITLE:

©

OFFICIAL’S SIGNATURE SIGNATURE DATE

Section 3: Charter Petition

Attach a copy of current and approved charter school petition with this packet.

CHARTER PETITION DATE. REFERENCE PAGE #:
12/11/18 1

CHARTER TERM FISCAL YEAR PERIOD: REFERENCE PAGE #
711119 - 6/30/24

RETIREMENT BENEFITS- REFERENCE PAGE #:

ﬂ CalSTRS ‘ﬂ. Social Security (1 Other Retirement | 72

CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION FOR CALSTRS ACTIVATION (ES1026) « NEW 05/16 » Page 3 of 4
Page 37 of 42




Charter School Application for T
CalSTRS Activation CALS RS

continued

Section 4: Support Documents (optional or upon request by CalSTRS)

Support documents are requested to confirm charter petition amendments on retirement benefits, charter term
effective dates, EPMC resolution effective dates, or other significant dates and information requiring clarification
from Charter School or Charter School Board.

Support documents must be complete with Officials’ Signatures and Dates.

Please select support document(s) submitted with this packet.
(J Board Approved Minutes

O Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU)

O Other (please specify)

CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION FOR CALSTRS ACTIVATION (ES1026) « NEW 05/16 « Page 4 of 4
Page 38 of 42




Charter School CalSTRS Activation - Instructions

CalSTRS Offers Retirement Benefits to Charter Schools
Charter schools have the unique ability to decide whether to provide CalSTRS benefits and services to their employees.

CalSTRS offers the following benefits to members:
e Defined Benefit Program
e Defined Benefit Supplement Program
* Pensiocn2®, a voluntary supplemental savings plan
e  Cash Balance Benefit Program

Criteria for a Charter School to Elect CalSTRS
During the initial writing of a charter petition, the school can elect to participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan
administered by CalSTRS to provide retirement benefits for their employees.
Charter schools must meet the following criteria to participate in CalSTRS retirement programs:
e Recognized as a public charter by the California Department of Education
e Elect participation in CalSTRS and enroll eligible employees

e  Submit a completed Charter School CalSTRS Activation (ES1026) packet to CalSTRS confirming participation before
reporting contributions

e Report contributions to CalSTRS via school district or county office of education

Laws in California Education Code for Charter Schools

e  California Education Code section 47605: Provides a charter school the option of participating in CalSTRS, CalPERS
or Social Security.

e  California Education Code section 47611: Informs charter schools that participation in CalSTRS means that all parts of
the Teachers’ Retirement Law apply to them in the same manner as to other public schools.

e California Education Code section 47611.3: Requires school districts of County Offices of Education to report
contributions and data to CalSTRS on behalf of charter schools.

Required Documents from Charter Schools Electing CalSTRS

Prior to accepting contributions, CalSTRS requires a completed Charter School CalSTRS Activation (ES1026) packet consisting
of the following documents:

03 Section 1-A: Completed Charter School Profile Summary
O Section 1-B: Reporting Structure of CalSTRS Data and Contributions
O Section 2: Completed Pre-Tax Resolution Form - Employer Paid Member Contributions (EPMC)
O Section 3. Copy of Approved Charter School Petition ‘
O Section 4. Other Support Documents: Approved Board Minutes or MOU
Email completed Charter School CalSTRS Activation (ES1026) packet to CharterSchoolQuestions@CalSTRS.com.

INSTRUCTIONS - CHARTER SCHOOL CALSTRS ACTIVATION (ES1026) = NEW 05/16
Page 39 of 42




MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
Finance and Accounting

RESOLUTION No. 2019 — 4

Subject: Update Check Signers on City National Bank Accounts

Recommendation:

That the corporate Board of Mission Vista Academy, A Corporation, approve Exhibit A of the resolution at City
National Bank for the accounts detailed in the following pages, and recommends it to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation for approval.

Background:

The bank listed have requested that we update our company resolution. Our resolution has not changed, however,
Exhibit A has been changed to reflect a modified list of authorized signers, which includes adding the signers of
record to include the Board Treasurer and deleting the position of Inspire District Office Executive Director as a
signer.

RESOLUTION
RESOLVED, that all previous resolutions authorizing signatories to the accounts listed on Exhibit A be and
they hereby are revoked and superseded effective the date of this resolution; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers specified in Exhibit A (“designated signers”) be and they hereby are
authorized (1) to sign, for and on behalf of this Corporation, any and all checks, drafts or other orders with
respect to any funds to the credit of this Corporation with the institutions listed on Exhibit A, (hereinafter
“Institutions”) against the Corporation’s listed accounts at those Institutions maintained at any time with these
Institutions, inclusive of any such checks, drafts, or other orders in favor of any of the designated signers and/or
other person(s), and/or (ii) to make withdrawals of any such funds from these accounts by any other means
authorized by the Institution, that the Institutions be and hereby are authorized (a) to pay such checks, drafts or
orders, and/or to honor such withdrawals; (b) to receive for deposit to the credit of the Corporation, and/or for
collection for these accounts of this Corporation, any and all checks, drafts, notes or other instruments for the
payment of money which may be submitted to it for such deposit and/or collection; to receive, as the act of this
Corporation, any and all stop payment instructions with respect to any such checks, drafts or other orders when
signed by any one or more of the designated signers as hereinafter designated.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the designated signers be and they hereby are authorized, for and on behalf of
this Corporation, to transact any and all other business with or through the Institutions which at any time may
be deemed by said designated signers transacting the same to be advisable EXCEPT THE BORROWING OF
MONEY, OR THE OBTAINING OF ANY FORM OF CREDIT, FROM THE INSTITUTIONS, EITHER
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, WITH OR WITHOUT SECURITY.

Page 40 of 42



MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
BOARD

That the Institutions are further authorized to pay to the debit of these accounts any and all checks, drafts and
other instruments for the payment of money drawn in the name of the Corporation bearing or purport ting to
bear the facsimile signature(s) of the Treasurer inclusive of and in favor of any person whose facsimile
signature appears thereon, if the facsimile signature(s) thereon, resemble(s) the specimen(s) filed with the
Institutions.

That the Institutions are hereby notified that any check in excess of One-hundred Thousand Dollars
($100,000.00) requires two signatures, both of which may be a facsimile signature.

Page 41 of 42



MISSION VISTA ACADEMY
BOARD

Exhibit A
City National Bank
Torrance, CA 90503
Account # Account Name Officers Authorized to Sign
014633413 Checking Account Board Secretary — Brigette Garcia

District Office CFO — Christopher
Williams

Page 42 of 42




	5-22-19 Board Packet - Mission Vista
	5-22-19 Agenda - Mission Vista
	2019-2020 Board Meeting Calendar-Mission Vista.pdf
	CalSTRS Activation MISSION VISTA

	DOCS-#3668756-v2-School_Lending_and_Borrowing_Policy
	DOCS-#3680280-v9-Master_Credit_Agreement
	ARTICLE I  DEFINITIONS, CONTENT OF CERTIFICATES AND OPINIONS; INTERPRETATION
	Section 1.01 Definitions
	Section 1.02 Content of Certificates and Opinions
	Section 1.03 Interpretation.
	(a) Unless the context otherwise indicates, words expressed in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and the use of the neuter, masculine or feminine gender is for convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and include the neuter, mas...
	(b) Headings of articles and sections herein and the table of contents hereof are solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect of any provision of this Master Agreement.
	(c) Unless the context otherwise indicates, all references herein to “Articles,” “Sections” “paragraphs”, “subparagraphs,” “clauses” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding Articles, Sections, paragraphs, subparagraphs, clauses or other subdiv...


	ARTICLE II  OUTSTANDING LOAN BALANCES
	Section 2.01 Ratification of Outstanding Loan Balances.
	Section 2.02 Repayment of Outstanding Loan Balances.

	ARTICLE III  REVENUE ANTICIPATION LOANS
	Section 3.01 Origination
	Section 3.02 Accounting and Documentation
	Section 3.03 The Administrator
	Section 3.04 Application of Proceeds
	Section 3.05 Repayment
	Section 3.06 Late Charges
	Section 3.07 Source of Payments

	ARTICLE IV  REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS
	Section 4.01 Charter
	Section 4.02 Books and Records
	Section 4.03 Representations of Each Participant
	(a) that it is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation duly organized and in good standing under the laws of the State and that it has been duly authorized by proper action of its Governing Body to execute and deliver this Master Agreement a...
	(b) that it has the necessary legal power and authority to execute and deliver this Master Agreement and all Revenue Anticipation Loan documents to which it is a party and has and will hereafter retain all necessary legal power and authority to perfor...
	(c) the execution and delivery of each Revenue Anticipation Loan document and its performance, rights and obligations thereunder do not violate any law or any of its obligations;
	(d) the Revenue Anticipation Loan documents have been duly executed and delivered by Participant Borrower and are and shall hereafter remain the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Participant Borrower, enforceable against the Participant Borr...
	(e) there is not presently pending or threatened by or against the Participant Borrower any suit, action, proceeding, or investigation which, if determined adversely to the Participant Borrower, would have a material adverse effect upon the Participan...
	(f) the Participant Borrower will prepare, execute and/or deliver such additional instruments and documents as the Participant Lender or its counsel reasonably may require or request in order to carry into effect the provisions and intent of this Mast...


	ARTICLE V  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	Section 5.01 Default
	(a) the failure of the Participant Borrower to make any payment on a Revenue Anticipation Loan when due;
	(b) (i) becoming insolvent as defined by applicable State law; (ii) the making by of any general assignment or general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; (iii) the filing by or against the Participant Borrower of a petition to have the Particip...
	(c) the failure of the Participant Borrower to timely observe or perform any other covenant, condition or provision of this Master Agreement and such failure shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof by the Administrator or t...
	(d) the failure of the Participant Borrower to maintain its Charter to operate its Charter School or otherwise comply with the requirements of the California Education Code and such failure continues for a period of 30 days after written notice thereo...
	(e) the Participant Borrower ceases to operate a public charter school based upon the Inspire Education Model;
	(f) the Participant Borrower fails to use commercially reasonable efforts, including negotiation with its other creditors, to reduce its debt and liabilities;
	(g) the Participant Borrower fails to obtain any necessary approvals, consents, authorizations, licenses, certificates and waivers required by law or reasonably necessary to properly effectuate this Master Agreement and to perform its obligations here...
	(h) any representation or warranty made by the Participant Borrower under this Master Agreement or in connection with any Revenue Anticipation Loan shall be untrue, incomplete or misleading in any material respect.

	Section 5.02 Remedies in Default

	ARTICLE VI  ADMISSION AND WITHDRAWAL OF PARTICIPANTS; THE ADMINISTRATOR
	Section 6.01 Effect of Admission as a Participant
	Section 6.02 Admission of a Participant
	(a) such Person operates a public charter school based upon, or duly licensed to operate under, the Inspire Education Model;
	(b) such Person, pursuant to authorization under a Board Resolution duly adopted by its Governing Body, shall execute and deliver to the Administrator, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, a Certificate by which such Person agrees:  (i) to become...
	(c) the Administrator shall have determined as a factual matter that such Person has satisfied the conditions provided in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for the admission of such Person as a Participant hereunder ; and
	(d) the roster of Participants maintained as Exhibit B hereto shall be amended by the Administrator to add such Person as a Participant.

	Section 6.03 Withdrawal of a Participant or the Administrator
	(a) prior to and immediately after such withdrawal as a Participant, no default on the part of such Participant exists hereunder or under any Revenue Anticipation Loan for which the Participant is a Participant Borrower;
	(b) prior to such withdrawal, the Participant shall not be a Participant Borrower under any Revenue Anticipation Loan then outstanding and not paid in full;
	(c) prior to such withdrawal, the Administrator shall have consented thereto; and
	(d) the roster of Participants maintained as Exhibit B hereto shall be amended by the Administrator to delete such Person as a Participant.

	Section 6.04 Appointment of Administrator

	ARTICLE VII  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	Section 7.01 Indemnification
	Section 7.02 Fiduciary Obligations
	Section 7.03 Assignment
	Section 7.04 Notice
	Section 7.05 Amendments
	Section 7.06 Entire Agreement
	Section 7.07 Arm’s Length and Independent Counsel
	Section 7.08 No Waiver
	Section 7.09 Severability
	Section 7.10 Governing Law
	Section 7.11 Counterparts
	Section 7.12 No Third Party Beneficiary
	Form of Revenue Anticipation Promissory Note
	PROMISSORY NOTE


	Exhibit A - Promissory Note.pdf
	PROMISSORY NOTE

	Exhibit A - Promissory Note.pdf
	PROMISSORY NOTE

	FY20-Frcst-INSPMVA-19.08.13.pdf
	FY19-20
	Multi-Year

	Mission Vista-Board Resolution-Check Signers.pdf
	Exhibit A




